

Travel Drumheller Marketing Society Annual General Meeting Wednesday, April 10th, 2019 Badlands Community Facility 6:30 - 7:30 p.m.

1. Call to Order	R. Semchuk
Introductions / Opening Remarks	
2. Approval of 2017 AGM Minutes	R. Semchuk
3. Review of old By-Laws	S. Newstead
4. Approval of new By-Laws	S. Newstead
5. 2017-2018 Financial Reports	C. Gordon
6. 2018 Marketing Highlights	A. Berry
7. Election of Board Members	A. Berry
8. Open Forum	
9. Closing Remarks	R. Semchuk
10. Adjournment	R. Semchuk

Travel Drumheller Marketing Association Annual General Meeting Thursday, October 12, 2017 **Badlands Community Facility**

MINUTES

In attendance:

Debbie Schinnour	Heather Bitz	Shelley Rymal	Ryan Semchuk
Julia Fielding	Trevor Tessier	Carrie Lunde	Heather Little
Devan Daniels	Michael Mangold	Vance Neudorf	Amber Hodgson
Simen Chistoffersen	Sarah Newstead	Coleen Gordon	Barb Steeves
Karel Stojan	Amie Courtenay	Bob Brown	Dennis Harder
Brent Noland	Bonnie Walbourne	Theresa Vvyey	Alyssa Berry
Flli Townsend	Anastasia Martin-Stil	we11	

Elli Townsend Anastasia Martin-Stilwell

Call to Order

Chair S. Rymal called the meeting to order at 10:08am. Minutes recorded by H. Bitz.

Approval of 2016 AGM Minutes

Motion by K. Stojan / H. Bitz that the AGM minutes of October 6, 2016 be approved as presented. CARRIED

Reports

A. Chair's Report

S. Rymal provided an overview of Travel Drumheller for the past fiscal year and introduced Alyssa Berry and Elli Townsend (marketing/admin contractors for Travel Drumheller). A. Berry provided an organizational update including the vision, mission and four strategic pillars of Travel Drumheller.

2016-17 Financial Statements

C. Gordon of Ascend Financial presented the financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2017.

Motion by H. Bitz / B. Steeves that the Travel Drumheller Marketing Association financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017 be approved as presented. CARRIED

2017 Marketing Highlights

A.Berry provided an overview of the 2017 key highlights for Travel Drumheller, including the redevelopment of the website with Strong Coffee, new format for the Exploration Guide, stakeholder relations plan, implementation of voluntary DMF and development of photo assets.

• 2017 Digital Marketing Campaign

T. Tessier of Strong Coffee presented the results of the 2017 digital marketing campaign (website and social media) for Travel Drumheller.

Election of Board of Directors

S. Rymal appointed A. Berry as Chairperson for the elections. A. Berry appointed H. Bitz and J. Fielding as scrutineers. A. Berry reported that there were four Director positions available - two 3-year terms ending 2021, one 2-year term ending 2020 and one 1-year term ending 2019.

A. Berry made the first call for nominations from the floor to stand as Director.

Motion by R. Semchuk / A. Hodgson that Theresa Vyvey (Drumheller Ramada) be nominated as Director.

T. Vyvey accepted the nomination.

Motion by S. Rymal / A. Courtenay that Devan Daniels (Trekcetera Museum)be nominated as Director.

D. Daniels accepted the nomination.

Motion by J. Fielding / B. Steeves that Sarah Newstead (Atlas Coal Mine) be nominated as Director.

S. Newstead accepted the nomination.

Motion by H. Bitz / C. Lunde that Heather Little (Rosebud Theatre) be nominated as Director.

H. Little accepted the nomination.

Motion by H. Bitz / J. Fielding that Vance Neudorf (Canadian Badlands Passion Play) be nominated as Director.

V. Neudorf accepted the nomination.

A.Berry made the second call for nominations from the floor to stand as Director.

A.Berry made the third call for nominations from the floor to stand as Director.

With five nominees, an election was required. Election by secret ballot was conducted.

A. Berry declared S. Newstead and D. Daniels as Directors for the Travel Drumheller Marketing Association for 3-year terms, T. Vyvey as a Director for a 2-year term and V. Neudorf as a Director for a 1-year term.

Motion by H. Bitz / S. Rymal to destroy the ballots. CARRIED.

Open Forum

A.Martin-Stilwell shared information from Travel Alberta, including the cooperative marketing program, Travel Alberta industry newsletter, Travel Alberta Fall Conference, and SHiFT 2018.

A.Berry noted that Travel Drumheller will soon introduce the 2018 buy-in program focused on digital marketing to promote year-round visitation.

S. Rymal asked A. Berry to elaborate on the \$30,000 Google advertising grant received by Travel Drumheller.

A.Berry extended an invitation to attend the Travel Drumheller networking mixer on Tuesday, October 17 from 5-7pm at the Quality Hotel.

- R. Semchuk noted the popularity of Dr. Locke and the animatronic dinosaurs that are managed by Canalta. Requests for bookings are to be directed to R. Semchuk.
- R. Semchuk questioned the perception of the local tourism industry regarding the DMF following the termination of Schedule B of the business license bylaw. S. Rymal highlighted Travel Drumheller's efforts to build trust and show value to the tourism industry.

Closing Remarks

S. Rymal thanked those in attendance and extended thanks to the Board for their support during the past year.

• Adjournment

Meeting adjourned at 11:50am.

Signed:		
	S. Rymal, Chair	

Objects of Travel Drumheller Marketing Association

Travel Drumheller Marketing Association shall have for its principal objects the promotion, development and encouragement of tourism trade and promotion, but without restricting the generality of the foregoing, shall have the following objects:

- 1. To encourage a spirit of partnership and collaboration amongst stakeholders in promoting Drumheller to the world.
- 2. To promote the publicizing of the products and the tourist attractions of Drumheller and region in other parts of Canada and elsewhere.
- 3. To stimulate interest in tourism activities and developments, whereby the industry and its stakeholders collaborate and form partnerships that lead to increased industry participation, promotion and exposure to tourism marketing opportunities.
- 4. To promote and encourage opportunities and events that will generate positive economic benefits on the part of its stakeholders and the community at large.
- 5. To advocate on behalf of tourism industry stakeholders to all levels of Government on matters affecting the objectives of Travel Drumheller.
- 6. To encourage a high standard of integrity among its stakeholders.
- 7. To make available, where possible sources of information to its stakeholders respecting general regulations affecting business and industry in Drumheller and region.
- 8. To exchange information with Destination Marketing Organizations and other organizations with compatible interests and objectives.

Travel Drumheller Marketing Association

BY-LAWS

Approved March 18, 2014

ARTICLE ONE - NAME

- 1.00 The name of this society shall be "Travel Drumheller Marketing Association".
- 1.01 The society shall have as its trade name as "Travel Drumheller."

ARTICLE TWO - INTERPRETATION

- 2.00 Wherever the words "Travel Drumheller" occur in these By-Laws, they shall be understood to mean "TRAVEL DRUMHELLER MARKETING ASSOCIATION" as a body.
- 2.01 Wherever the words "The Board" occur in these By-Laws, they shall be understood to mean "The Board of Directors of travel Drumheller Marketing association."
- 2.02 Wherever the word "Region" occurs in these By-Laws, it shall mean that area, within and for which this Travel Drumheller was established, as defined in the Certificate of Registration under the Society's Act (R.S.A., c. XXX, s. X).
- 2.03 Wherever the word "Director" occurs in these By-Laws, it shall mean an individual elected or appointed by the stakeholders to serve on the Board of Directors.
- 2.04 Words imparting the masculine gender shall be interpreted to include the feminine and neutral genders.

ARTICLE THREE - STAKEHOLDER PARTICIPATION

3.00 Eligibility

- 3.00.1 Any business, individual, organization or municipality which has financially purchased into Travel Drumheller services or programs during the past fiscal year shall be considered a stakeholder in good standing of the Association.
- 3.00.2 Stakeholders of Travel Drumheller shall be bound by the By-Laws and regulations of Travel Drumheller.

3.01 Representations

3.01.1 A stakeholder being a business, individual, organization or municipality shall designate in writing a representative to exercise the rights and privileges of the stakeholder in Travel Drumheller, and such designation may be changed from time to time in writing, upon request.

3.01.2 Every stakeholder shall be entitled to one representative. Each representative so designated shall himself (during the continuance of the designation and while the designating member is in good standing) be deemed to be a stakeholder for all of the purposes of Travel Drumheller.

3.02 Classification

The stakeholders of Travel Drumheller may be divided into such classifications as may be determined from time to time by the Board.

- 3.03 Withdrawal or Removal of Stakeholder
 - 3.03.1 A stakeholder may be removed upon failure to pay the required fees for programs or services used within 90 days from the date on which payment should be made.
 - 3.03.2 Any stakeholder can be removed by a two-thirds vote of the Board for cause deemed by the Board to be in contravention of the Association's by-laws, the Association's code of conduct, objectives or policies. The stakeholder will be provided at least fifteen (15) days written notice by the Executive Director of the intention of the Board to discuss the stakeholder removal and the stakeholder will be extended the opportunity to address the subject at the Board meeting where the matter will be discussed.

ARTICLE FOUR - BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- 4.00 Travel Drumheller will be governed by a maximum of ten (10) Board of Directors comprised of the following:
 - 4.00.1 Four (4) Board of Directors shall be appointed on an annual basis as follows:
 - One (1) Representative from the Town of Drumheller (the CAO, or designate).
 - One (1) Representative from the Drumheller and District Chamber of Commerce (the General Manager, or designate).
 - One (1) Representative from the Royal Tyrrell Museum (the Executive Director, or designate).
 - One (1) Representative from Destination's West Destination Marketing Organization (the Chairperson, or designate).
 - 4.00.2 Six (6) Board of Directors shall hold elected positions in accordance with the procedure outlined in Article 9. These positions shall be filled on a rotating basis, with two (2) Directors being elected each year for a three (3) year term. These positions shall be filled by tourism attractions, events or amenities.

- 4.01 No member shall be *elected* to the Board for more than two (2) consecutive three-year terms. A person is eligible for re-election to the Board after a one (1) year absence from an elected position.
- 4.02 At the first meeting of the Board following the Annual General Meeting, the Board will elect internally, an Executive Committee comprised of a Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and Secretary-Treasurer from the ten (10) Board Representatives only. This will be done by secret ballot and all Board Representatives will be eligible to vote.
- 4.03 The Board will establish the scope and nature of the activities to be carried out by Travel Drumheller in order to carry out its mandate.
- 4.04 The Board shall have the authority to determine how available operating funds can most effectively be spent in carrying out the mandate of Travel Drumheller.
- 4.05 The Board shall have authority to determine signing authority on all accounts, contracts, or documents that are binding on Travel Drumheller.
- 4.06 The Board shall have the authority to hire the Executive Director and to determine the terms of employment thereof. It shall also have the authority to dismiss its Executive Director for such reasons, as the Board deems necessary in accordance with Employment Standards and practices.
- 4.07 The Board shall have the authority to appoint both Standing and Ad-Hoc Committees and to determine the terms of reference thereof. Non-Board stakeholders may serve as stakeholders on Committees established by the Board provided however, that the appointee is in good standing and such appointment is approved by the Board.
- 4.08 If it is necessary for any reason to replace a Board member before the expiration of their term or to fill any other vacant positions on the Board, the Board may appoint such replacements from any current stakeholder.
- 4.09 Board Representation may be terminated upon a Director:
 - (a) Being absent for three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Board unless the Board concludes there was adequate reasons for such absences;
 - (b) Ceasing to remain a stakeholder in good standing;
 - (c) Acting in a manner detrimental to the purpose of Travel Drumheller, as evidenced by a majority vote of the Board;
 - (d) Being found lunatic or of unsound mind;
 - (e) Being convicted of any offence involving imprisonment without the option of a fine; or

- (f) Violating the Board's Conflict of Interest guidelines.
- 4. 10 A Director may retire from the Board upon giving one (1) month's notice in writing, and such resignation shall take effect upon the expiration of such notice or earlier acceptance.
- 4.11 The term of office for elected and appointed Directors shall commence at the first meeting of the Board following the Annual General Meeting and, upon the completion of their term, shall expire immediately prior to the first meeting of the Board following the Annual General Meeting.
- 4.12 Directors shall not receive compensation for their services. Expenses incurred while acting in the official capacity of Travel Drumheller may be reimbursed, by approval of the Board.
- 4.13 Resolutions, except where otherwise stated in the Constitution and By-Laws, shall require a simple majority of votes by those Directors present for approval. All Directors, including the Chairperson, shall have one vote. Voting by proxy will not be accepted. In the event of a tie vote, the resolution shall be considered lost and defeated.
- 4.14 Minutes shall be recorded for all meetings of the Board, and upon their subsequent approval by the Board as being true and a complete record of the business transacted, shall be maintained at the office of Travel Drumheller.
- 4.15 The Annual General Meeting of Travel Drumheller shall be held within 120 days of Travel Drumheller's year-end.
- 4.16 The Executive Committee of the Board shall comprise the following:
 - a) Chairperson
 - c) Vice-Chairperson
 - d) Secretary/Treasurer
- 4.17 In the event of a vacancy amongst the Executive Committee, the Chairperson shall be empowered to appoint a replacement Executive Committee Member from the Board of Directors, but it shall be necessary for the Board to ratify such appointment at the next meeting of the Board.
- 4.18 The Chairperson:
 - a) Shall be the Chief Executive Officer of Travel Drumheller;
 - b) Shall endeavor to attend all meetings of Travel Drumheller and its executives and shall preside over the proceedings of their meetings;
 - c) Shall be an ex-officio member of every Committee;
 - d) Shall be the official spokesman for Travel Drumheller but may delegate such power in regard to public pronouncements to such representative(s) or Executive Director of

- Travel Drumheller as he may decide;
- e) Shall act at all times in accordance with the lawful directives of Travel Drumheller;
- f) Shall cause to be brought to the attention of Travel Drumheller stakeholders all matters affecting the well being of Travel Drumheller and its operations;
- g) May, from time to time, with the concurrence of Travel Drumheller stakeholders approve the formation of Committees and prescribe their functions and limitations and appoint persons to serve therein; however, that each appointment to stakeholdership on each Committee shall cease and determine on the day prior to the next Annual General Meeting.

4.19 The Vice-Chairperson:

a) Shall do all things reasonably as required by the Chairperson for the better functioning of Travel Drumheller. In the absence of the Chairperson he shall assume his role.

4.20 The Secretary/Treasurer shall endeavor to:

- a) Maintain minutes of all meetings of Travel Drumheller and its stakeholders and in that capacity shall be clerk thereof. He may utilize the services of a stenographer and in the absence of contrary direction from the Chairperson, such stenographer may attend with the Secretary at the aforementioned meetings;
- b) Be responsible for the accurate maintenance of the records of stakeholders and their addresses;
- c) Be responsible for the maintenance of all required books of account and financial records;
- d) Establish and maintain adequate systems for the control of expenditures;
- e) Prepare, or have prepared under his direction the proposed budget and its presentation by him to the Board of Directors for approval or amendment;
- f) Maintain Travel Drumheller within the expenditures of the accepted budget;
- g) Establish and maintain adequate systems to ensure that the funds of Travel Drumheller are properly deposited and accounted for in accordance with normal accounting procedures;
- h) Ensure that all necessary appointments of signing officers for banking and other financial documentation are made from time to time by the Board of Directors.
- i) Assist the Chairperson in such other areas of financial control as the Chairperson may require;

- Perform such other duties as the Chairperson may, from time to time, direct.
- 4.21 At any meeting of the Board, 50% of the Directors plus one shall form a quorum for the transaction of business.
- 4.22 The Board shall, in addition to the powers hereby expressly conferred on it, have such powers as are assigned to it by any By-Law of Travel Drumheller provided, however, that such powers are not inconsistent with the provisions of the Society's Act.
- 4.23 The Board shall frame such By-Laws, rules and regulation best adopted to promote the welfare of Travel Drumheller, and shall submit them for adoption, at a General Meeting of Travel Drumheller, called for that purpose.

ARTICLE FIVE - INDEMNITY OF BOARD STAKEHOLDERS

- 5.00 Travel Drumheller shall indemnify all Directors and Officers of Travel Drumheller and any other person, their heirs, executors and administrators from and against all costs, charges, expenses and damages sustained as a result of an undertaking authorized by Travel Drumheller.
- 5.01 Travel Drumheller shall indemnify every Director or Officer of Travel Drumheller from all costs, charges, expenses and damages to which the Director or Officer of Travel Drumheller may be put as a result of a bona fide execution of the duties of his office or position.

ARTICLE SIX - MEETINGS

- 6.00 The Annual General Meeting of Travel Drumheller shall be held within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the fiscal year end at a time and place determined by the Board. At least twenty one (21) days' notice of the Annual General Meeting shall be given.
- 6.01 General Meetings of Travel Drumheller may be held at a time and place designated by the Board. At least seven (7) days' notice of such meetings shall be given.
- 6.02 Special Meetings of Travel Drumheller may be held at any time when summoned by the Chairperson, or requested in writing by any two (2) Directors of the Board. At least seven (7) days' notice of such meetings shall be given.
- 6.03 The Board shall meet from time to time and not less than four (4) times a year to carry on the business of Travel Drumheller.
- 6.04 Notice of all meetings, naming the time and place of assembly, shall be given by the Executive Director as directed by the Board.
- 6.05 At any Annual or General Meeting, six (6) stakeholders shall be a quorum and, unless otherwise specifically provided, a majority of stakeholders present shall be competent to do and perform all acts which are or shall be directed to be done at any such meeting.

- 6.06 Minutes of the proceedings of all General and Board meetings shall be entered in books to be kept for that purpose, by a person designated by the Board from time to time.
- 6.07 The entry of such minutes shall be signed by the Chairperson who presides at the meeting at which they are adopted. Copies of the minutes of each meeting will be provided to board members at least 2 days prior to the next scheduled meeting.
- 6.08 The books of account shall be kept at the registered office or such place or places as designated by the Directors. No person other than a Director, Auditor, Stakeholder, Executive Director, Officer, Accountant, person authorized by the Board, or person authorized by the stakeholders, shall have any right to inspect any account, book or document of Travel Drumheller.

ARTICLE SEVEN - MANAGEMENT OF BUSINESS AFFAIRS

- 7.00 The Executive Director shall be responsible as senior administration, through the Executive, to the Board of Directors:
 - a) For all approved plans, results, occurrences and matters of and relating to the operation of Travel Drumheller;
 - b) For the general supervision, direction, and control of all employees of Travel Drumheller and to ensure the proper performance of their duties and responsibilities in accordance to approved plans;
 - c) For all administrative functions within approved guidelines of Travel Drumheller including budget preparation and control, maintaining the books of account, correspondence, and clerical support.
 - d) For the custodianship of all property and records of Travel Drumheller.
- 7.01 At the direction of the Chairperson, the Executive Director shall attend all meetings of the Board of Directors or any other meetings of stakeholders or Committees of Travel Drumheller. The Executive Director shall serve as a resource to all such meetings, without voting privileges.
- 7.02 The Executive Director shall do all things as may reasonably be required of him by the Chairperson in order to maintain the successful operation of Travel Drumheller and Committees in accordance with approved plans and policies.
- 7.03 The Board shall adopt a common seal of Travel Drumheller and provide for its safe custody.
- 7.04 The seal shall not be used except by the authority of the Board and/or the Executive Director in the presence of a member of the Board who shall sign every instrument to which the seal is affixed.
- 7.05 The seal shall remain in the custody of the Executive Director at his official office.

ARTICLE EIGHT - VOTING RIGHTS

- 8.00 Every stakeholder in good standing represented at any General Meeting shall be entitled to one (1) vote providing that the vote of a business, individual, organization or municipality shall, in each case be assigned to individuals.
- 8.01 Voting at General Meetings shall normally be by show of hand, or if requested by the Chairperson, by secret ballot. In the alternative, a secret ballot shall be taken if requested by five (5) stakeholders providing such request receives the approval of two-thirds (2/3) of the stakeholders assembled. Voting by proxy will not be accepted.
- 8.02 Motions or amendments shall be carried at General Meetings by a majority vote unless otherwise provided for in these By-Laws.
- 8.03 The Chairperson shall only cast a vote on a motion in the event of a tie.

ARTICLE NINE - ELECTIONS

- 9.00 The Annual Election of the Board shall take place at the Annual General Meeting.
- 9.01 Every stakeholder affiliated with Travel Drumheller and in good standing shall be eligible for election and all retiring stakeholders of the Board in good standing shall be eligible for re-election subject to the provisions of Article 4.01.
- 9.02 The Nomination Committee shall consist of the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson.
- 9.03 The Nominating Committee shall endeavor to prepare a slate of nominations for election to the Board. No nomination shall be valid without the written or oral consent of the nominee.
 - 9.03.1 The Nominating Committee will consider the following key criteria in seeking Board of Director nominees:
 - 1) The individual's history and contributions within the tourism industry.
 - 2) The organization that the individual represents including the history and contributions that the organization has made within the tourism industry.
 - 3) The extent of participation in marketing activities of Travel Drumheller including, but not limited to advertising, special events and other activities that further the interest of tourism development in the district.
 - 4) That a broad cross section of representation from within the tourism and hospitality industry is maintained.
- 9.04 Each stakeholder in good standing in attendance at the Annual General Meeting may make nominations provided the person has obtained the consent of the nominee in writing if the nominee is not present at the meeting, or, in the alternative, nominee gives his consent.

- 9.05 The Chairperson shall be the Chairperson of the Nominating Committee and shall appoint the Chairperson of the elections.
- 9.06 Voting shall be conducted by secret ballot, unless otherwise agreed by consensus.
- 9.07 At the close of voting, the Chairperson or Chairperson of Elections shall report the results of the election to Travel Drumheller.

ARTICLE TEN - BY-LAWS

- 10.00 These By-Laws, or any of them may be amended, altered or repealed by a majority vote of persons in good standing and present at any General Meeting of Travel Drumheller or at any Special Meeting called for that purpose, provided that written notice of the proposed amendments, alterations or repeals shall be given in the notice for the meeting at which they are to be considered.
- 10.01 The foregoing By-Laws shall come into effect as soon as they have been adopted at a meeting of Travel Drumheller and have been approved by the appropriate Minister of Industry; and thereupon the By-Laws of Travel Drumheller theretofore existing are repealed.

ARTICLE ELEVEN - AFFILIATION

11.00 Travel Drumheller, at the discretion of the Board, shall have power to affiliate with Travel Alberta, and any other organizations which may be in the interest of Travel Drumheller.

ARTICLE TWELVE - FISCAL YEAR

12.00 The fiscal year of Travel Drumheller shall commence on the first day of January in each year.

ARTICLE THIRTEEN - AUDIT

- 13.00 Once in every year the accounts of Travel Drumheller shall be examined and the correctness of the accounts and balance sheet ascertained by one (1) or more auditor or auditors.
- 13.01 The Board of Directors shall appoint such auditor or auditors to hold office for the ensuing vear.
- 13.02 The auditor's report of Travel Drumheller for the past fiscal year shall be made to each Annual General Meeting, and the auditor's report shall be kept at Travel Drumheller office.

ARTICLE FOURTEEN-PROCEDURE

14.00 Parliamentary procedure shall be followed at all General and Board Meetings, in accordance with "Roberts Rules of Order Newly Revised."



Objects of Travel Drumheller Marketing Association

Travel Drumheller Marketing Association shall have for its principal objects the promotion, development and encouragement of tourism trade and promotion, but without restricting the generality of the foregoing, shall have the following objects:

- 1. To encourage a spirit of partnership and collaboration amongst stakeholders in promoting Drumheller to the world.
- 2. To promote the publicizing of the products and the tourist attractions of Drumheller and region in other parts of Canada and elsewhere.
- 3. To stimulate interest in tourism activities and developments, whereby the industry and its stakeholders collaborate and form partnerships that lead to increased industry participation, promotion and exposure to tourism marketing opportunities.
- 4. To promote and encourage opportunities and events that will generate positive economic benefits on the part of its stakeholders and the community at large.
- 5. To advocate on behalf of tourism industry stakeholders to all levels of Government on matters affecting the objectives of Travel Drumheller.
- 6. To encourage a high standard of integrity among its stakeholders.
- 7. To make available, where possible sources of information to its stakeholders respecting general regulations affecting business and industry in Drumheller and region.
- 8. To exchange information with Destination Marketing Organizations and other organizations with compatible interests and objectives.

Travel Drumheller Marketing Association

BY-LAWS

Approved March 18, 2014

ARTICLE ONE - NAME

- 1.00 The name of this society shall be "Travel Drumheller Marketing Association".
- 1.01 The society shall have as its trade name as "Travel Drumheller."

ARTICLE TWO - INTERPRETATION

- 2.00 Wherever the words "Travel Drumheller" occur in these By-Laws, they shall be understood to mean "TRAVEL DRUMHELLER MARKETING ASSOCIATION" as a body.
- 2.01 Wherever the words "The Board" occur in these By-Laws, they shall be understood to mean "The Board of Directors of travel Drumheller Marketing association."
- 2.02 Wherever the word "Region" occurs in these By-Laws, it shall mean that area, within and for which this Travel Drumheller was established, as defined in the Certificate of Registration under the Society's Act (R.S.A., c. XXX, s. X).
- 2.03 Wherever the word "Director" occurs in these By-Laws, it shall mean an individual elected or appointed by the stakeholders to serve on the Board of Directors.
- 2.04 Words imparting the masculine gender shall be interpreted to include the feminine and neutral genders.

ARTICLE THREE - STAKEHOLDER PARTICIPATION

3.00 *Eligibility*

- 3.00.1 Any business, individual, organization or municipality which has financially purchased into Travel Drumheller services or programs during the past fiscal year shall be considered a stakeholder in good standing of the Association.
- 3.00.2 Stakeholders of Travel Drumheller shall be bound by the By-Laws and regulations of Travel Drumheller.

3.01 Representations

3.01.1 A stakeholder being a business, individual, organization or municipality shall designate in writing a representative to exercise the rights and privileges of the stakeholder in Travel Drumheller, and such designation may be changed from time to time in writing, upon request.

3.01.2 Every stakeholder shall be entitled to one representative. Each representative so designated shall himself (during the continuance of the designation and while the designating member is in good standing) be deemed to be a stakeholder for all of the purposes of Travel Drumheller.

3.02 Classification

The stakeholders of Travel Drumheller may be divided into such classifications as may be determined from time to time by the Board.

- 3.03 Withdrawal or Removal of Stakeholder
 - 3.03.1 A stakeholder may be removed upon failure to pay the required fees for programs or services used within 90 days from the date on which payment should be made.
 - 3.03.2 Any stakeholder can be removed by a two-thirds vote of the Board for cause deemed by the Board to be in contravention of the Association's by-laws, the Association's code of conduct, objectives or policies. The stakeholder will be provided at least fifteen (15) days written notice by the Chairperson of the intention of the Board to discuss the stakeholder removal and the stakeholder will be extended the opportunity to address the subject at the Board meeting where the matter will be discussed.

ARTICLE FOUR - BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- 4.00 Travel Drumheller will be governed by a maximum of twelve (12) Board of Directors comprised of the following:
 - 4.00.1 Five (5) Board of Directors shall be appointed on an annual basis as follows:
 - One (1) Representative from the Town of Drumheller (the CAO, or designate).
 - One (1) Representative from the Drumheller and District Chamber of Commerce (the General Manager, or designate).
 - One (1) Representative from the Royal Tyrrell Museum (the Executive Director, or designate).
 - One (1) Representative from Destination's West Destination Marketing Organization (the Chairperson, or designate).
 - One (1) Representative to chosen by the Domestic Marketing Fund signatories to represent their collective interests.
 - 4.00.2 Seven (7) Board of Directors shall hold elected positions in accordance with the procedure outlined in Article 9. These positions shall be filled on a rotating basis, with two (2) Directors being elected each year for a three (3) year term. These

positions shall be filled by tourism attractions, events or amenities.

- 4.01 No member shall be *elected* to the Board for more than two (2) consecutive three-year terms. A person is eligible for re-election to the Board after a one (1) year absence from an elected position.
- 4.02 At the first meeting of the Board following the Annual General Meeting, the Board will elect internally, an Executive Committee comprised of a Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and Secretary-Treasurer from the twelve (12) Board Representatives only. This will be done by secret ballot and all Board Representatives will be eligible to vote.
- 4.03 The Board will establish the scope and nature of the activities to be carried out by Travel Drumheller in order to carry out its mandate.
- 4.04 The Board shall have the authority to determine how available operating funds can most effectively be spent in carrying out the mandate of Travel Drumheller.
- 4.05 The Board shall have authority to determine signing authority on all accounts, contracts, or documents that are binding on Travel Drumheller.
- 4.06 The Board shall have the authority to hire the Executive Director and to determine the terms of employment thereof. It shall also have the authority to dismiss its Executive Director for such reasons, as the Board deems necessary in accordance with Employment Standards and practices.
- 4.07 The Board shall have the authority to appoint both Standing and Ad-Hoc Committees and to determine the terms of reference thereof. Non-Board stakeholders may serve as stakeholders on Committees established by the Board provided however, that the appointee is in good standing and such appointment is approved by the Board.
- 4.08 If it is necessary for any reason to replace a Board member before the expiration of their term or to fill any other vacant positions on the Board, the Board may appoint such replacements from any current stakeholder.
- 4.09 Board Representation may be terminated upon a Director:
 - (a) Being absent for three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Board unless the Board concludes there was adequate reasons for such absences;
 - (b) Ceasing to remain a stakeholder in good standing;
 - (c) Acting in a manner detrimental to the purpose of Travel Drumheller, as evidenced by a majority vote of the Board;
 - (d) Being found lunatic or of unsound mind;

- (e) Being convicted of any offence involving imprisonment without the option of a fine; or
- (f) Violating the Board's Conflict of Interest guidelines.
- 4. 10 A Director may retire from the Board upon giving one (1) month's notice in writing, and such resignation shall take effect upon the expiration of such notice or earlier acceptance.
- 4.11 The term of office for elected and appointed Directors shall commence at the first meeting of the Board following the Annual General Meeting and, upon the completion of their term, shall expire immediately prior to the first meeting of the Board following the Annual General Meeting.
- 4.12 Directors shall not receive compensation for their services. Expenses incurred while acting in the official capacity of Travel Drumheller may be reimbursed, by approval of the Board.
- 4.13 Resolutions, except where otherwise stated in the Constitution and By-Laws, shall require a simple majority of votes by those Directors present for approval. All Directors, including the Chairperson, shall have one vote. Voting by proxy will not be accepted. In the event of a tie vote, the resolution shall be considered lost and defeated.
- 4.14 Minutes shall be recorded for all meetings of the Board, and upon their subsequent approval by the Board as being true and a complete record of the business transacted, shall be maintained at the office of Travel Drumbeller
- 4.15 The Annual General Meeting of Travel Drumheller shall be held within 120 days of Travel Drumheller's year-end.
- 4.16 The Executive Committee of the Board shall comprise the following:
 - a) Chairperson
 - c) Vice-Chairperson
 - d) Secretary/Treasurer
- 4.17 In the event of a vacancy amongst the Executive Committee, the Chairperson shall be empowered to appoint a replacement Executive Committee Member from the Board of Directors, but it shall be necessary for the Board to ratify such appointment at the next meeting of the Board.
- 4.18 The Chairperson:
 - a) Shall be the Chief Executive Officer of Travel Drumheller;
 - b) Shall endeavor to attend all meetings of Travel Drumheller and its executives and shall preside over the proceedings of their meetings;
 - c) Shall be an ex-officio member of every Committee;

- d) Shall be the official spokesman for Travel Drumheller but may delegate such power in regard to public pronouncements to such representative(s) or Executive Director of Travel Drumheller as he may decide;
- e) Shall act at all times in accordance with the lawful directives of Travel Drumheller;
- f) Shall cause to be brought to the attention of Travel Drumheller stakeholders all matters affecting the well being of Travel Drumheller and its operations;
- g) May, from time to time, with the concurrence of Travel Drumheller stakeholders approve the formation of Committees and prescribe their functions and limitations and appoint persons to serve therein; however, that each appointment to stakeholdership on each Committee shall cease and determine on the day prior to the next Annual General Meeting.

4.19 The Vice-Chairperson:

a) Shall do all things reasonably as required by the Chairperson for the better functioning of Travel Drumheller. In the absence of the Chairperson he shall assume his role.

4.20 The Secretary/Treasurer shall endeavor to:

- Maintain minutes of all meetings of Travel Drumheller and its stakeholders and in that capacity shall be clerk thereof. He may utilize the services of a stenographer and in the absence of contrary direction from the Chairperson, such stenographer may attend with the Secretary at the aforementioned meetings;
- b) Be responsible for the accurate maintenance of the records of stakeholders and their addresses;
- c) Be responsible for the maintenance of all required books of account and financial records;
- d) Establish and maintain adequate systems for the control of expenditures;
- Prepare, or have prepared under his direction the proposed budget and its presentation by him to the Board of Directors for approval or amendment;
- f) Maintain Travel Drumheller within the expenditures of the accepted budget;
- g) Establish and maintain adequate systems to ensure that the funds of Travel Drumheller are properly deposited and accounted for in accordance with normal accounting procedures;
- h) Ensure that all necessary appointments of signing officers for banking and other

- financial documentation are made from time to time by the Board of Directors.
- i) Assist the Chairperson in such other areas of financial control as the Chairperson may require;
- j) Perform such other duties as the Chairperson may, from time to time, direct.
- 4.21 At any meeting of the Board, 50% of the Directors plus one shall form a quorum for the transaction of business.
- 4.22 The Board shall, in addition to the powers hereby expressly conferred on it, have such powers as are assigned to it by any By-Law of Travel Drumheller provided, however, that such powers are not inconsistent with the provisions of the Society's Act.
- 4.23 The Board shall frame such By-Laws, rules and regulation best adopted to promote the welfare of Travel Drumheller, and shall submit them for adoption, at a General Meeting of Travel Drumheller, called for that purpose.

ARTICLE FIVE - INDEMNITY OF BOARD STAKEHOLDERS

- 5.00 Travel Drumheller shall indemnify all Directors and Officers of Travel Drumheller and any other person, their heirs, executors and administrators from and against all costs, charges, expenses and damages sustained as a result of an undertaking authorized by Travel Drumheller.
- 5.01 Travel Drumheller shall indemnify every Director or Officer of Travel Drumheller from all costs, charges, expenses and damages to which the Director or Officer of Travel Drumheller may be put as a result of a bona fide execution of the duties of his office or position.

ARTICLE SIX - MEETINGS

- 6.00 The Annual General Meeting of Travel Drumheller shall be held within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the fiscal year end at a time and place determined by the Board. At least twenty one (21) days' notice of the Annual General Meeting shall be given.
- 6.01 General Meetings of Travel Drumheller may be held at a time and place designated by the Board. At least seven (7) days' notice of such meetings shall be given.
- 6.02 Special Meetings of Travel Drumheller may be held at any time when summoned by the Chairperson, or requested in writing by any two (2) Directors of the Board. At least seven (7) days' notice of such meetings shall be given.
- 6.03 The Board shall meet from time to time and not less than four (4) times a year to carry on the business of Travel Drumheller.
- 6.04 Notice of all meetings, naming the time and place of assembly, shall be given by the

- Chairperson as directed by the Board.
- 6.05 At any Annual or General Meeting, six (6) stakeholders shall be a quorum and, unless otherwise specifically provided, a majority of stakeholders present shall be competent to do and perform all acts which are or shall be directed to be done at any such meeting.
- 6.06 Minutes of the proceedings of all General and Board meetings shall be entered in books to be kept for that purpose, by a person designated by the Board from time to time.
- 6.07 The entry of such minutes shall be signed by the Chairperson who presides at the meeting at which they are adopted. Copies of the minutes of each meeting will be provided to board members at least 2 days prior to the next scheduled meeting.
- 6.08 The books of account shall be kept at the registered office or such place or places as designated by the Directors. No person other than a Director, Auditor, Stakeholder, Executive Director, Officer, Accountant, or person authorized by the Board, or person authorized by the stakeholders, shall have any right to inspect any account, book or document of Travel Drumheller.
- 6.09 Requests by general stakeholders to view Travel Drumheller's books of account must be made to the Chairperson with at least five (5) working days prior notice.

ARTICLE SEVEN - MANAGEMENT OF BUSINESS AFFAIRS

- 7.00 The Executive Director shall be responsible as senior administration, through the Executive, to the Board of Directors:
 - a) For all approved plans, results, occurrences and matters of and relating to the operation of Travel Drumheller;
 - b) For the general supervision, direction, and control of all employees of Travel Drumheller and to ensure the proper performance of their duties and responsibilities in accordance to approved plans;
 - c) For all administrative functions within approved guidelines of Travel Drumheller including budget preparation and control, maintaining the books of account, correspondence, and clerical support.
 - d) For the custodianship of all property and records of Travel Drumheller.
- 7.01 In the event of the absence of an Executive Director, the Board may appoint a clerk (s) to undertake the non-supervisory duties of the Executive Director role.
- 7.02 At the direction of the Chairperson, the Executive Director shall attend all meetings of the Board of Directors or any other meetings of stakeholders or Committees of Travel Drumheller. The Executive Director shall serve as a resource to all such meetings,

- without voting privileges.
- 7.03 The Executive Director shall do all things as may reasonably be required of him by the Chairperson in order to maintain the successful operation of Travel Drumheller and Committees in accordance with approved plans and policies.
- 7.04 The Board shall adopt a common seal of Travel Drumheller and provide for its safe custody.
- 7.04 The seal shall not be used except by the authority of the Board and/or the Executive Director in the presence of a member of the Board who shall sign every instrument to which the seal is affixed.
- 7.05 The seal shall remain in the custody of the Executive Director at his official office.

ARTICLE EIGHT - VOTING RIGHTS

- 8.00 Every stakeholder in good standing represented at any General Meeting shall be entitled to one (1) vote providing that the vote of a business, individual, organization or municipality shall, in each case be assigned to individuals.
- 8.01 Voting at General Meetings shall normally be by show of hand, or if requested by the Chairperson, by secret ballot. In the alternative, a secret ballot shall be taken if requested by five (5) stakeholders providing such request receives the approval of two-thirds (2/3) of the stakeholders assembled. Voting by proxy will not be accepted.
- 8.02 Motions or amendments shall be carried at General Meetings by a majority vote unless otherwise provided for in these By-Laws.
- 8.03 The Chairperson shall only cast a vote on a motion in the event of a tie.

ARTICLE NINE - ELECTIONS

- 9.00 The Annual Election of the Board shall take place at the Annual General Meeting.
- 9.01 Every stakeholder affiliated with Travel Drumheller and in good standing shall be eligible for election and all retiring stakeholders of the Board in good standing shall be eligible for re-election subject to the provisions of Article 4.01.
- 9.02 The Nomination Committee shall consist of the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson.
- 9.03 The Nominating Committee shall endeavor to prepare a slate of nominations for election to the Board. No nomination shall be valid without the written or oral consent of the nominee.
 - 9.03.1 The Nominating Committee will consider the following key criteria in seeking Board of Director nominees:

- 1) The individual's history and contributions within the tourism industry.
- 2) The organization that the individual represents including the history and contributions that the organization has made within the tourism industry.
- 3) The extent of participation in marketing activities of Travel Drumheller including, but not limited to advertising, special events and other activities that further the interest of tourism development in the district.
- 4) That a broad cross section of representation from within the tourism and hospitality industry is maintained.
- 9.04 Each stakeholder in good standing in attendance at the Annual General Meeting may make nominations provided the person has obtained the consent of the nominee in writing if the nominee is not present at the meeting, or, in the alternative, nominee gives his consent.
- 9.05 The Chairperson shall be the Chairperson of the Nominating Committee and shall appoint the Chairperson of the elections.
- 9.06 Voting shall be conducted by secret ballot, unless otherwise agreed by consensus.
- 9.07 At the close of voting, the Chairperson or Chairperson of Elections shall report the results of the election to Travel Drumheller.

ARTICLE TEN - BY-LAWS

- 10.00 These By-Laws, or any of them may be amended, altered or repealed by a majority vote of persons in good standing and present at any General Meeting of Travel Drumheller or at any Special Meeting called for that purpose, provided that written notice of the proposed amendments, alterations or repeals shall be given in the notice for the meeting at which they are to be considered.
- 10.01 The foregoing By-Laws shall come into effect as soon as they have been adopted at a meeting of Travel Drumheller and have been approved by the appropriate Minister of Industry; and thereupon the By-Laws of Travel Drumheller theretofore existing are repealed.

ARTICLE ELEVEN - AFFILIATION

11.00 Travel Drumheller, at the discretion of the Board, shall have power to affiliate with Travel Alberta, and any other organizations which may be in the interest of Travel Drumheller.

ARTICLE TWELVE - FISCAL YEAR

12.00 The fiscal year of Travel Drumheller shall commence on the first day of January in each

year.

ARTICLE THIRTEEN - AUDIT

- 13.00 Once in every year the accounts of Travel Drumheller shall be examined and the correctness of the accounts and balance sheet ascertained by one (1) or more auditor or auditors.
- 13.01 The Board of Directors shall appoint such auditor or auditors to hold office for the ensuing year.
- 13.02 The auditor's report of Travel Drumheller for the past fiscal year shall be made to each Annual General Meeting, and the auditor's report shall be kept at Travel Drumheller office.

ARTICLE FOURTEEN-PROCEDURE

14.00 Parliamentary procedure shall be followed at all General and Board Meetings, in accordance with "Roberts Rules of Order Newly Revised."

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited - See Notice to Reader)

December 31, 2017



TABLE OF CONTENTS
December 31, 2017

NOTICE TO READER	1
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS	2
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS	3
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION	4
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	5



NOTICE TO READER

On the basis of information provided by management, we have compiled the statement of financial position of Travel Drumheller Marketing Association as at December 31, 2017 and the statements of operations and changes in net assets for the period then ended.

We have not performed an audit or a review engagement in respect of these financial statements and, accordingly, we express no assurance thereon.

Readers are cautioned that these statements may not be appropriate for their purposes.

Ascend

Ascend Financial CPAs LLP
Chartered Professional Accountants
Independent Member Firm of
PORTER HÉTU INTERNATIONAL
Drumheller, Alberta
June 18, 2018



STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Period ended December 31, 2017

(Unaudited - See Notice to Reader)

	J	lul - Dec 2017	•	Jul - Jun 2017
Revenues				
Operating contributions	\$	125,907	\$	159,451
SHiFT program income		-		20,907
Vacation guide revenue		-		46,240
		125,907		226,598
Expenditures				
Vacation guide expenses		16,647		39,680
Marketing		15,955		7,324
Consulting fees		14,650		30,730
Professional fees		2,815		4,340
Travel		1,706		631
Insurance		1,239		2,223
Telephone and utilities		330		330
Office		231		481
Interest and bank charges		24		-
SHiFT program expenses		-		21,595
Website design		_		9,500
Commissions		-		8,180
Training		-		1,667
Advertising and promotion		-		1,089
Meals and entertainment		-		553
Amortization		362		916
		53,959		129,239
Excess of revenues over expenditures from operations		71,948		97,359
Other income (expense) Interest		33		34
Excess of revenues over expenditures	\$	71,981	\$	97,393



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Periond ended December 31, 2017

(Unaudited - See Notice to Reader)

Jul - Dec 2017

	 		 		2017
	Total	 ested in t assets	 estricted et assets	Restr	icted net assets
Balance, beginning of year	\$ 138,667	\$ 3,508	\$ 135,159	\$	-
Excess of revenues over expenditures	71,981	-	71,981		-
Amortization of capital assets	-	 (362)	362		_
Balance, end of year	\$ 210,648	\$ 3,146	\$ 207,502	\$	-
				,	Jul - Jun 2017
	Total	ested in t assets	estricted et assets	Restr	icted net assets
Balance, beginning of year	\$ 41,274	\$ 4,424	\$ 36,850	\$	-
Excess of revenues over expenditures	97,393	-	97,393		-
Amortization of capital assets	-	(916)	916		_
Balance, end of year	\$ 138,667	\$ 3,508	\$ 135,159	\$	_



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31, 2017

(Unaudited - See Notice to Reader)

	Dec 2017		Jun 2017
	2011		
ASSETS			
Current			
Cash	\$ 206,371	\$	140,206
Accounts receivable	- 1,642		3,616 477
Prepaid expenses GST receivable	4,203		1,262
00110001144510	1,200	-	1,202
	212,216		145,561
Property, plant and equipment - note 2	3,146		3,508
1 Tobat (); Brank and adaptment. Trace 2	0,110		0,000
	\$ 215,362	\$	149,069
LIABILITY AND FUND BALANCES			
Current			
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	\$ 4,714	\$	10,402
Surplus Balance	 210,648		138,667
	\$ 215,362	\$	149,069
			- Incompany
On behalf of the board			
Mambar		Mous	h.a.
Member		Mem	ber

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2017

(Unaudited - See Notice to Reader)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Change of Fiscal Year

The Fiscal year has been changed from June 30 to December 31. Period covered by this financial statement is of 6 months from July 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017.

Operations and nature of the organization

Travel Drumheller Marketing Association (the "Association") is a non-taxable, not for profit organization incorporated under the laws of the Province of Alberta on March 18, 2014. The Association undertakes various marketing projects in support of the local tourism industry. The Association also organizes and arranges for the production of the Drumheller Vacation Guide. The Association is registered as a not-for-profit organization under the Income Tax Act. Under the Act, the Association must meet certain requirements within the Act in order to be exempt from income tax. In the opinion of management, these requirements have been met.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. The organization provides for amortization using the declining balance method at rates designed to amortize the cost of the property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives. The annual amortization rates are as follows:

Computer equipment 30% Machinery and equipment 20%

2. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

			-	Dec 2017		Jun 2016
	Cost	 mulated rtization	N	et Book Value	Ne	et Book Value
Computer equipment Machinery and equipment	\$ 746 7,141	\$ 561 4,180	\$	185 2,961	\$	218 3,290
	\$ 7,887	\$ 4,741	\$	3,146	\$	3,508



NOTICE TO READER

On the basis of information provided by management, we have compiled the statement of financial position of Travel Drumheller Marketing Association as at December 31, 2018 and the statements of operations and changes in net assets for the year then ended.

We have not performed an audit or a review engagement in respect of these financial statements and, accordingly, we express no assurance thereon.

Readers are cautioned that these statements may not be appropriate for their purposes.

Ascend

Ascend Financial CPAs LLP
Chartered Professional Accountants
Independent Member Firm of
PORTER HÉTU INTERNATIONAL
Drumheller, Alberta
January 9, 2019



STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
Period ended December 31, 2017

(Unaudited - See Notice to Reader)

		Jan - Dec 2018	Jul - Dec 2017
Revenues			
Operating contributions		\$ 197,120	\$ 125,907
Vacation guide revenue	Total	39,974	net assets
Balance, beginning of period	\$ 210,648	237,094	125,907
Expenditures			
Vacation guide expenses		69,320	16,647
Marketing		64,482	15,955
Consulting fees		31,556	14,650
Commissions		6,088	\$ 263-592
Professional fees		2,387	2,815
Insurance		2,337	1,239
Training		1,841	2-34.7
Advertising and promotion		1,264	_
Amortization		972	362
Telephone and utilities		659	330
Office and general		536	231
Travel and accommodation		391	1,706
Professional dues	\$ 130,007	233	9 1307336
Excess of revenues over expanditures	71,981	182,066	53,935
Excess of revenues over expenditures from operations		55,028	71,972
Other income (expense)			
Other income (expense) Interest		90	9
Excess of revenues over expenditures		\$ 55,118	\$ 71,981

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Periond ended December 31, 2017

(Unaudited - See Notice to Reader)

Jan - Dec 2018

					2010
	T-4-1		vested in		restricted
Olish	Total	n	et assets	n	et assets
Balance, beginning of period	\$ 210,648	\$	3,146	\$	207,502
Excess of revenues over expenditures	55,118		6,285		55,118
Amortization of capital assets	-		(972)		972
Balance, end of period	\$ 265,766	\$	2,174	\$	263,592
LIABILITY AND FUND DALANCES			267,824		Jul - Dec 2017
		Inv	ested in	Unrestricted	
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	Total	n	et assets	n	et assets
Balance, beginning of period	\$ 138,667	\$	3,508	\$	135,159
Excess of revenues over expenditures	71,981		267,224		71,981
Amortization of capital assets	-		(362)		362
Balance, end of period	\$ 210,648	\$	3,146	\$	207,502

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31, 2018

(Unaudited - See Notice to Reader)

t. NATURE OF OPERATIONS				Dec 2018		Dec 2017
ASSETS						
Current						
Cash			\$	204,550	\$	206,371
Accounts receivable				53,086		Under the
Prepaid expenses				1,729		1,642
GST receivable	ent, these	recuirements	POAS IX	6,285		4,203
				265,650		212,216
Property, plant and equipment - note 2	1			2,174		3,146
Property, plant and equipment are rec	orded at a	oost. The org	\$	267,824	\$	215,362
LIABILITY AND FUND BALANCES						
Current						
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities			\$	2,058	\$	4,714
Surplus Balance		Accumulate	ed 1	265,766		210,648
Rate			\$	267,824	\$	215,362
Computer equipment 50% \$	746	8 64	4 5	102		185
On behalf of the board						
						3,148
Member					Mem	ber

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2018

(Unaudited - See Notice to Reader)

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Travel Drumheller Marketing Association (the "Association") is a non-taxable, not for profit organization incorporated under the laws of the Province of Alberta on March 18, 2014. The Association undertakes various marketing projects in support of the local tourism industry. The Association also organizes and arranges for the production of the Drumheller Vacation Guide. The Association is registered as a not-for-profit organization under the Income Tax Act. Under the Act, the Association must meet certain requirements within the Act in order to be exempt from income tax. In the opinion of management, these requirements have been met.

2. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. The organization provides for amortization using the declining balance method at rates designed to amortize the cost of the property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives. The annual amortization rates are as follows:

					Dec 2018		Dec 2017
	Rate	Cost	mulated rtization	Ne	et Book Value	Ne	et Book Value
Computer equipment Machinery and	30%	\$ 746	\$ 644	\$	102	\$	185
equipment	20%	7,141	5,069		2,072		2,961
		\$ 7,887	\$ 5,713	\$	2,174	\$	3,146

3. Change of Fiscal Year

The Fiscal year was changed from June 30 to December 31 effective July 1, 2017. Period covered by this financial statement, for comparative purposes, is of 6 months from July 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017.





Travel Drumheller Marketing Association 2018 Board of Directors

Chairperson: Ryan Semchuk (Canalta)

Vice Chairperson: Sarah Newstead (Atlas Coal Mine National Historic Site)

Secretary / Treasurer: Barb Steeves (East Coulee School Museum)

Directors: Debbie Schinnour (Drumheller & District Chamber of Commerce)

Cindie Hughes (Quality Inn)
Theresa Vyvey (Ramada Hotel)

Elaine Secord (Royal Tyrrell Museum of Palaeontology)

Vance Neudorf (Badlands Amphitheatre)

Julia Fielding (Town of Drumheller)

Devan Daniels (Trekcetera)

<u>Name</u>	<u>Position</u>	<u>Term</u>	Expiry
* VACANT	Director	3yr	2022
* VACANT	Director	3yr	2022
* VACANT	Director	3yr	2022
* VACANT	Director	3yr	2022
* VACANT	Director	3yr	2022
* VACANT	Director	3yr	2021
Sarah Newstead	Director	3yr	2021
Theresa Vyvey	Director	2yr	2020
Cindie Hughes	Director	3yr	2020
Debbie Schinnour	Appointed	Annual	2019
Julia Fielding	Appointed	Annual	2019
Elaine Secord	Appointed	Annual	2019
Ryan Semchuk	Appointed	Annual	2019

^{*} Application Required

Travel Drumheller Marketing Association 2019 Candidates

Barb Steeves
Vance Neudorf
Crystal Sereda
Heather Little
Devan Dekeyser

East Coulee School Museum Badlands Amphitheatre Valley Brewing Rosebud Centre of the Arts Dinosaur RV Park